
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
December 26, 2012 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Jim Sharp 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
9. Approval Of Minutes –December 10, 2012 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

10. Ordinance Number 2427 – An Ordinance Establishing And Creating The Alcohol Abuse 
Education Program And The Traffic Safety Education Program For The Municipal Court 
Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

New Business 

11. Resolution Number 4382 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For A Transport Unit 
12. Resolution Number 4383 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Enter Into A Contract With Owens Landscape Group 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

13. Resolution Number 4384 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3317 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-
23-2-4-10-RR-0, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
Said Demolition To Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Directing The City 
Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged 



Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners 

14. Resolution Number 4385 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 2733 Rocky Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-
29-1-1-1-RR-2, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
Said Demolition To Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Directing The City 
Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged 
Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners 

15. Resolution Number 4381 – Annexation – 90 day – 4918 Cahaba River Road; Shannon 
Waltchack; Len Shannon, Representing 

16. Ordinance Number 2426 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of Real 
Estate Situated At 1112 Montgomery Highway In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Commonly Referred To As The Old Library Property And More Particularly Described 
In Exhibit A And The Execution And Delivery Of A Real Estate Purchase And Sale 
Agreement (public hearing scheduled for January 14, 2013) 

17. Citizens Comments 
18. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 10, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Jim Sharp 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
 
 Invocation was given by Dennis Anderson, Vestavia Hills Baptist Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• None. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Robertson stated that the Holiday in the Hills tree lighting and parade in 
Liberty Park were held last week and were a tremendous success with a lot of 
good planning involved. 

• The Municipal Center will be closed December 24 and 25 for Christmas holidays 
as well as December 31 and January 1 for New Year’s holidays. 

• The City Council’s next regular meeting will be on Wednesday, December 26 due 
to the closure of the Municipal Center for the holidays. 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 2 
 

• The Ordinance to allow traffic court in the City will allow the program to begin in 
January for scheduling purposes with the actual class beginning in March. 

• The architectural firms that are vying for the opportunity to design the new 
Municipal Complex for the City will be returning with their beginning design 
ideas on the 18th of December. 

• NAIOP breakfast will be held in the Library Community Room on January 24, 
2013 with a spotlight on the LEED certified library as well as the US 31 
Redevelopment Study. 

• December 13, 2012 will commemorate the 2nd anniversary of the opening of the 
Library in the Forest. 

• Mr. Robertson turned the floor over to Chief Dan Rary. 
o Chief Rary gave a Certificate of Recognition to Lt. Kevin York for the 

immense amount of equipment, vehicles, etc., that he has procured from 
the Federal Government and Military for City use.  Overall, Lt. York has 
managed to secure well over $2 million worth of equipment, etc., for the 
City to use.   Mr. Ammons indicated that Lt. York has proudly stayed up 
late a night just for the opportunity to obtain this equipment for the City 
and we are all proud of his efforts. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce thanked everyone involved in the planning and the activities for the 
Holiday in the Hills celebration.  It has been a wonderful combined effort of all 
involved. 

• Mayor Zaragoza stated that the parade which is held in Liberty Park was longer 
and better this year and continues to grow with each passing year. 

• Mr. Sharp indicated that the Planning Commission had driven by and viewed the 
possible location for a garage facility and stated that at first glance, the area looks 
like a good location.  

• Mr. Henley stated that the School Board adopted the new school calendar and, in 
other business, adopted a Code of Conduct which will be known to the Board 
members and attached to the application for new members. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the November 26, 2012 (Regular Meeting) were presented for 
approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the November 26, 

2012 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce 
and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 3 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action on 

Resolution Number 4378 and 4379 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by 
Mr. Sharp.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4378 

Resolution Number 4378 – A Resolution To Appoint A Member To The Vestavia 
Hills Library Board 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4378 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that Ashley Hicks was selected to fill the upcoming 
vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Library Board.  He introduced her and gave a brief 
background of her experience and talents. 
 
 Ms. Hicks thanked the Council for the opportunity. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4379 

Resolution Number 4379 – A Resolution To Appoint A Member To The Vestavia 
Hills Park And Recreation Board 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4379 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Ammons stated that Tommy Coggin was selected to fill the upcoming 
vacancy of the Park and Recreation Board.  He gave a brief background of Mr. Coggin’s 
qualifications and experience.  Unfortunately, Mr. Coggin was unable to attend the 
meeting. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 4 
 

Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2424 

Ordinance Number 2424 – Rezoning – 740 Sussex Drive; Rezone from Jefferson 
County Unknown to Vestavia Hills R-2, Residential; Joe and Paula 
Fiore, Owners; Ray Weygand, Weygand Surveyors, Representing 

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2424 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Ray Weygand, Weygand Surveyors, and Joe Fiore, owner, were in attendance 
regarding this request. 
 
 Mr. Weygand and Ms. Leavings explained this is a request to zone property that 
shows no zoning classification to Vestavia Hills R-2.  Ms. Leavings explained that the 
property owners wish to subdivide the property to add two lots adjacent to Tyler Road 
but a zoning classification needs to be assigned to the property first.  All properties 
surround this with the exception of Viridian, are zoned R-2 and the staff recommended 
that zoning for this property. 
 
 Mr. Sharp reported that the Planning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend approval of this request. 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Joe Fiore, 740 Sussex Drive, asked why there couldn’t be three lots.  Ms. 
Leavings explained that the property is too narrow to allow three R-2 lots. 
 
 There being no one else present to address the Council concerning this request, 
the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4374 

Resolution Number 4374 – A Resolution Accepting A Quote From MG&A For 
Erosion Control And Grassing At Sicard Hollow 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 5 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4374 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution remediates an erosion problem that 
has been occurring at Sicard Hollow Field. 
 
 Mr. Davis answered various questions posed by the Council concerning 
remediation of the problem that caused the erosion, whether or not it was design issues 
and if the remediation will solve the issue. 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the expenditure was $42,450 which was unbudgeted and 
opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the request before 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4375 

Resolution Number 4375 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement With Alabama Department Of 
Transportation For Project CMAQ-PE12( ), Preliminary Engineering 
Project To Design Sidewalks Along Massey Road, Montgomery 
Highway And Columbiana Road 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4375 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution would provide for the preliminary 
design and engineering for sidewalks on Massey Road between Montgomery Highway 
and Columbiana Road. 
 
 Mr. Brady explained that this is a multi-phased project which eventually will 
include some remediation of the road as well as sidewalks.  The City’s anticipated match 
in this will be $32,000. 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the expenditure was unbudgeted and opened the floor 
for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the request before the Council, the 
Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 6 
 

Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4276 

Resolution Number 4276 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement With ALDOT For Project Number DE-
AL104(916); Vestavia Hills Pedestrian Walkway; Supplement 
Number 1 (Postponed From March 12, 2012 Meeting) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4276 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 The Mayor indicated that this Resolution was presented last March and postponed 
based on attorney advice.  The agreements have been revised and are now being brought 
back to the Council for consideration.  He indicated that the next Resolution is the same 
type agreement. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the request before the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 
question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4270-A 

Resolution Number 4270-A – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Enter Into An Agreement With ALDOT For Project 
Number HPP-A124( ) Pedestrian Walkway Over US-31; Supplement 
Number 1 (Postponed From March 12, 2012 Meeting) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4270-A was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 The Mayor indicated that this Resolution is they same type contract as the 
previous one. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the request before the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 
question. 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 7 
 

 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4361-A 

Resolution Number 4361-A – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4361 - 
Changing City Officials Designated To Sign Checks At Pinnacle Bank 
For The Library Account 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4361-A was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Ms. Leavings explained that the Council changed signatures on all City financial 
accounts at the November 5th meeting and it was later discovered that this particular 
account contains signatures from the Library Director and the Library Board because it is 
a Library donation account.  Therefore, this Resolution will change the signatures on the 
account to those standard signatures of the City with these other three as additional 
signers. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4377 

Resolution Number 4377 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Janitorial Services At 
The Civic Center 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4377 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that bids were sent out for janitorial services for the City and 
a recap of the responses are included in the Council packets.  References of the lowest 
bidder were checked out finding no problems, so the recommendation is to award the 
contract to the lowest bidder Professional Management of Alabama. 
 
 Mr. Ammons pointed out that this contract will replace two employees who 
formerly worked at the Civic Center. 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 8 
 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that that is correct and the funds are budgeted. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action on 

Resolution Number 4376 was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. 
Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4376 

Resolution Number 4376 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement For Architectural Services To Design A 
Fleet Maintenance Facility For The City Of Vestavia Hills 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4376 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution is for architectural services to design 
a fleet maintenance building for Cahaba Heights and for Wald Park.  He stated that Barry 
Davis, architect, submitted a quote and then reduced it and he recommends approval of 
this proposal. 
 
 Discussion ensued with the Council regarding whether or not to pursue both 
facility designs when the Park and Recreation Board was studying a possible redesign 
and long-term plan for Wald Park. 
 
 Mr. Robertson stated the agreement would still have to come back to the Council 
for approval when finalized. 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one 
present to address the Council regarding the proposal, the Mayor closed the public 
hearing and called for the question. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
December 10, 2012, 

Page 9 
 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – no   Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of 
December 26, 2012 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2427 – An Ordinance Establishing And Creating The Alcohol 
Abuse Education Program And The Traffic Safety Education Program For The 
Municipal Court Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

• Ordinance Number 2426 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Sale Of 
Real Estate Situated At 1112 Montgomery Highway In The City Of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, Commonly Referred To As The Old Library Property And More 
Particularly Described In Exhibit A And The Execution And Delivery Of A Real 
Estate Purchase And Sale Agreement (public hearing scheduled for January 14, 
2013) 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
None. 

 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:30 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. 

Ammons seconded the motion.  Roll call vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2427 
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND CREATING THE 
ALCOHOL ABUSE EDUCATION PROGRAM AND THE 
TRAFFIC SAFETY EDUCATION PROGRAM FOR THE 
MUNICIPAL COURT OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 26th day of December, 2012. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Title 12-14-1(a), 

Code of Alabama, 1975, which authorizes municipalities to establish a Municipal Court; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Title 12-14-2, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that: 

 “(a) The municipality shall provide appropriate facilities and 
necessary supportive personnel for the municipal court and may provide 
for probation services, clerks and municipal employees designated as 
magistrates. 
 (b) Municipalities shall furnish prosecutorial services in 
municipal courts and in appeals from such judgments and orders.”; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Title 12-14-3, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that: 

 “The municipal court shall have the number of judges and shall 
hold court at times and places provided by the municipal governing 
body.”; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Title 12-14-13, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that: 

 (a) Municipal courts may suspend execution of sentence and 
place of defendant on probation for varying periods of time, not to exceed 
two years… 
 (d) The court shall determine and may, at any time, modify the 
conditions of probation and may require the probationer to comply with 
the following or any other conditions:.. 
  (9) To attend defensive driving schools, alcohol 
countermeasure programs or courses where available and support his 
dependents to the best of his ability.”; and 
 



Ordinance Number 2427 
Page 2 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, pursuant to 

the above legal authority, enacted Ordinance Number 397 on December 27, 1977, which 

established The Municipal Court for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 6 of Ordinance Number 397 sets forth the powers of the 

Court and reads in pertinent part as follows: 

 “F. The Municipal Judge shall have the authority to continue 
the case from time to time to permit the fine and costs to be paid, remit 
fines, costs and fees, impose intermittent sentences, establish work release 
programs, require attendance of educational, corrective or rehabilitative 
programs, suspend driving privileges for such times and under such 
conditions as provided by law and order hearings to determine the 
competency of the defendant to stand trial; provided further, that the judge 
may enter an order authorizing the defendant to drive under the conditions 
set forth in the order.”; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to create and establish an alcohol countermeasure 

program and a defensive driving school as described in Title 12-14-13(d)(9), Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. There is hereby established an Alcohol Abuse Educational Program to be 

known as the Highway Intoxication Seminar, which shall be under the supervision of the 

Clerk of the Municipal Court.  Each person attending the Seminar shall be charged no 

more than Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) for evaluation and/or registration.  Such fees 

are to be assessed by the Judge of the Municipal Court as appropriate, unless the same is 

waived by the Municipal Judge or by the Clerk of Municipal Court in such cases where 

the individual is being referred by an outside agency. 

  2. There is hereby established a Traffic Safety Educational Program, which 

shall be under the supervision of the Clerk of the Municipal Court.  Each person 

attending the Seminar shall be charged not more than One Hundred and Fifty Dollars 

($150.00) for registration.  Such fees are to be assessed by the Judge of the Municipal 

Court as appropriate, unless the same is waived by the Municipal Judge or by the Clerk 

of Municipal Court in such cases where the individual is being referred by an outside 

agency. 



Ordinance Number 2427 
Page 3 

 
 
 3. There is hereby established an Advisory Committee consisting of the 

Presiding Municipal Judge or his designee, the Chief of Police or his designee, and the 

City Attorney or his designee. 

 4. The Clerk of the Municipal Court shall be responsible for scheduling of 

classes, instructors and facilitators and setting reasonable fees for the payment of the 

instructors and facilitators.  The Clerk of Municipal Court shall adopt rules and 

regulations for the operation of the established educational programs, criteria for 

acceptance and completion and established fees for the appropriate program.  These rules 

and regulations, policy and procedures, and fee list shall be readily available for public 

inspection. 

 5. All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Alcohol Abuse 

Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program in the form of registration 

fees, evaluation fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained in a separate account with the 

City Finance Department to be distributed as follows:  

  (a)  to fully cover the cost of services provided by the previously 

mentioned education programs;  

  (b)  an amount equivalent to Fifty-five Dollars ($55.00) per individual 

participant to the City’s “Court and Correction Fund”;  

  (c)  an amount equivalent to Ten Dollars ($10.00) per applicant to the 

“Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund”; and  

  (d)  all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of providing 

various other traffic safety education and awareness programs to the Vestavia Hills 

community through the Traffic Safety Office of the Vestavia Hills Police Department or 

any other police activities.  The collection and use of these monies shall be under the 

supervision of the Police Chief and Finance Director. 

 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 



Ordinance Number 2427 
Page 4 

 
 
 

 7. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of 

December, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2427 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 26th day of December, 2012 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 





Resolution Number 4382 
Page 1 

 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4382 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR A RESCUE UNIT FOR 
THE VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills received and opened bids for a rescue unit 

on November 27, 2012; and 

 WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received; and 

 WHEREAS, the Fire Chief, in a memorandum dated December 17, 2012, 

recommended the acceptance of Excellance, Inc., in the amount of $200,331.68; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Excellance, Inc., in the amount of $200,331.68 

is hereby accepted; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4382 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 26th day of 

December, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 

(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 

 

 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 

FIRE CHIEF 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Randy Robertson, City Manager   

 

FROM:  Chief St. John 

 

DATE:  December 17, 2012 

 

RE:  Rescue Unit bid recommendation 

 

The FY 2013 Capital Purchases Budget includes $210,000 to replace Rescue 34.  The following 

responses were received in reply to our invitation to bid: 

 

1. Braun Industries, Inc. bid $201,568.00 and took 100 exceptions to our specifications. 

2. Excellance, Inc. bid $200,331.68 and took no exceptions.  The bid included five 

 “clarifications” that primarily related to the availability of options on the Ford F-450 

 chassis. 

3. Peach State Ambulance, Inc. bid $174,801.00 and took 42 exceptions.  15 exceptions 

 were related to the frame and construction and no descriptions of the exceptions or any 

 equivalencies were provided. Additionally, exceptions were taken to most compartment 

 specifications.  The compartment specs ensure standardization among our rescue units 

 and replicate the configuration of the two most recently purchased rescue units.  

 

Because of the number and nature of exceptions taken by the low bidder, I recommend accepting 

the bid from Excellance, Inc. 

 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4383 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH OWENS 
LANDSCAPE GROUP FOR LANDSCAPING SERVICES AT THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY IN THE FOREST 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to enter into a contract 

with Owens Landscape Group for landscaping services at the Vestavia Hills 

Library in the Forest for an amount not to exceed $697.00 per month; and 

2. A copy of said contract is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4383 as if written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4383 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of 

December, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 













Resolution Number 4384 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4384 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 3317 
MOUNTAINSIDE ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
PARCEL ID# 28-23-2-4-10-RR-0, IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 
THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF 
ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; 
AND CALLING FOR SAID DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED 
BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE 
COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST 
THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 3317 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel I.D. Number 28-23-2-4-10-RR-0 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to 
the life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on Donald Paul Stewart; 
Mortgage Electronic Registration System,s Inc., (A/K/A Mers); Southtrust Mortgage 
Corp.; Amsouth Bank (N/K/A Regions Bank); Annie Steward; State Farm Insurance; 
Jefferson County Sewer Service Office; Birmingham Water Works, a copy of same was 
sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 



Resolution Number 4384 
Page 2 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, January 14, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. as follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on January 14, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. and 
after due deliberation, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that 
the structure standing at 3317 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 
28-23-2-4-10-RR-0 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the citizens 
of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and demolished in 
compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-
53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama;  
 
 Section 2. That said demolition is to be performed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills; and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4384 
Page 3 

 
 ADOPTED this the 14th day of January, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 
__________ day of ______________, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, January 
14, 2013, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 





























Resolution Number 4385 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4385 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 2733 ROCKY RIDGE 
ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 28-29-1-1-1-
RR-2, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 
11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, 
OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR SAID DEMOLITION 
TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AND 
DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO 
CAUSE THE COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED 
AGAINST THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR 
STRUCTURE EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH 
COST TO BE RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE 
OWNER OR OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 2733 Rocky Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel I.D. Number 28-29-1-1-1-RR-2 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to 
the life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on Donald Paul Stewart; 
Mortgage Electronic Registration System,s Inc., (A/K/A Mers); Southtrust Mortgage 
Corp.; Amsouth Bank (N/K/A Regions Bank); Annie Steward; State Farm Insurance; 
Jefferson County Sewer Service Office; Birmingham Water Works, a copy of same was 
sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 



Resolution Number 4385 
Page 2 

 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, January 14, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. as follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on January 14, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. and 
after due deliberation, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that 
the structure standing at 2733 Rocky Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 
28-29-1-1-1-RR-2 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and demolished in 
compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-
53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama;  
 
 Section 2. That said demolition is to be performed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills; and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4385 
Page 3 

 
 
 ADOPTED this the 14th day of January, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 
__________ day of ______________, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, January 
14, 2013, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

























Resolution Number 4381 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4381 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 26, 2012, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 14th day of January, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 16th day of January, 2013. 



Resolution Number 4381 
Page 2 

 
 2.  That on the 25th day of March, 2013, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, a 

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an 

Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4381 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4918 Cahaba River Road 
Shannon-Waltchack, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described 
as follows: 
 
Begin at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 section and run then Westerly along 
the South line thereof for a distance of 240 feet to the point of beginning 
of the tract here described: 
 
From the point of beginning thus obtained, continue Westerly along the 
South line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 162.60 feet; thence turn 
an angle of 92 degrees 03’ 30” to the right and run Northwardly for a 
distance of 234.16 feet to a point of intersection with a curve, said curve 
having a radius of 1,186.48 feet and subtending a central angle of 04 
degrees 44’ 10” to the tangent of said curve forming an angle of 81 
degrees 36’ 30” to the right from the last described course when extended 
Northwardly through the point of intersection of said curve, run thence 
Eastwardly along said curve an along the Southerly line of the right of 
way of U.S. Highway 280 for a distance of 98.08 feet; thence turn an 
angle of 88 degrees 05’ 30” to the right angle measured to tangent of said 
curve and run Southwardly for a distance of 255.33 feet, more or less, to 
the point of beginning. 



Resolution Number 4381 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of January, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor      
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



4918 Cahaba River Road 
Shannon-Waltcheck LLC 

 

 
 



















Proposed By:

Len Shannon III

Shannon Waltchack, LLC
120 18th Street South
Birmingham, AL 35233
www.shanwalt.com

Proposed Annexation
and Re-Zoning
For the Property Located At

4918 Cahaba River Rd.

Birmingham, AL 35243

Y^V
•s*'

j Shannon Waltchack "EOlBth Straot South.Suto 101 / Birmingham. AL3S233 o:205.B77.S797 T:205.977.97B3 w:shanwalt.com



Table of Contents

• Overview of Request

• Vicinity Map

• Site Plan

• Survey

• Aerial Photographs

• Proposed Building Design

• Utility Letters

r?S&

*£*
i Shannon Waltchack "EOlBth Stront5DUth.suto 101/ Birmingham, AL35233 o:2Q5.977.B7B7 1:205.377.9793 w: shanwalt.com



x

Overview of Request

Owner: Shannon Waltchack, LLC currently owns the property, but the development will
be owned 50% by Shannon Waltchack and 50% by the future tenant, Centurion
Labs.

Property: Property is located on Cahaba River Rd., just east of Patchwork Farms.

Proposal: To construct a commercial building, being approximately 7,200 square feet for
office and storage.

Architecture: There is a diverse array of architectural themes along Cahaba River Road. We
plan to construct a commercial building, but one that has residential elements to
blend with the architectural themes in the immediate block.

Parking: Our tenant will only have four employees (offices) and the rest of the building will
be temperature controlled storage for medical products since they sell to
wholesalers. No customers will be coming to the office.

Lighting: Minimal exterior lighting is proposed.

Dumpster: Future Tenant will not need a dumpster.

Tenant: Centurion Labs is owned by Trey Duel who lives in Vestavia on Caldwell Mill Rd.
Centurion Labs sells prescription products and supplements to drug wholesalers.

| Shannon Waltchack
W

boIBth stroot South.Sutoioi/ Birmingham. AL 35233 o:205.977.9737 f:205.977.9733 w:shanwalt.com



VICINITY MAP

,Y^Y
W

j Shannon-Waltchack "GOIBth stroot South.Su to 101/Birmingham. AL 35233 o:205.B77.3 737 f:205.9 77.3733 w: shanwalt.com



REF. SHEET:

DESCRIPTION: CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT PLAN

• CAHABA RIVER ROAD PROPOERTY
3IRMINIGHAM. AL

Co.i
CONCEPTUAL DRAWING

GMC«

DATE: 03.15.2012

DRAWN BY: — 27011st Ave South, Suite IOO | Birmingham, AL3S2J3
T.I 205.879-4462 I GMCNETWORK.COM



LEGEND

ASP
BLDC
CALC
UEAS
CH
INO
d
A

ESUT
KW

ASPHALT
MONO
CALCULATED
MEASURED
CHORD
LONG CHORD
DEFLECTION
DELTA
EASEMENT
HEABSMU

MH MANHOLE
CH OVERHANG
PCR PORCH
R RADIUS
R.O.W. RWHT OF WAY
SAN SAMTARY
SIM STORM
UT1L UTUTY
AC ACRES
&F. SQUARE FEET
9. CENTERUNE
A/C AD CONDITIONER
• POLE
>— ANCHOR
-X FENCE
—KV— OVERHEAD UTUTY WRE
PVMT PAVEMENT
W> WITH
TAN TANGENT
RES RESBOKE
oLCT LIGHT
COV COVERED

SE CORNER
NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4
SECTION 34, T-18S, R-2V
JEFFERSON CO.. ALABAMA

ACREAGE

5?88K-.

OECX

CONCRETE

WALL

COLUMN

SCALD l'=40'
State ofAlabama)
Jefferson County)

I,Laurence D. Weygand, aregfceredEngmeeMjuid Surveyor, or Ray Weygaiid, aregistered Land Surveyor, certify tothe purchaserofthis property at
this time, that Ihave surveyed theland shown and described hereon; that there are norightMf-way, easement orjoint drwewa
visible onthe surface except asshown; that there are noelectric ortelephotje wires (exchKKng wires which serve premises onh/) orrt
therefor, including poles, anchors and guy wires, onorover said premises except asshown; that Ihave consulted the Federal h»ir^^
Flood Hazard Boundary Map and found that this property isnot located inaspeddflood hazart area; that there are Menaoachmen^
as shown and that improvements are located as shown. Ihereby state that all parts ofthis survey and drawing have been completed maeconiance with the
current requiiementsoftfae Standard* ofPractice for Surveying mme State ofAlabaiM tothe bestofmyknowledge, inform Note: (a) No
title search ofthe public records has been performedbythis firm and land shown hereon wu«rt abstracted for easemcntt
orunrecorded. The parcel shown hereon issubject tosetbacks, esaenKots, zatting. and restrictkns that imry befound mthe pubtereco^
and/or city, (b) Allbearings and/or angles, and distances are deed/record map and acteal unless otherwise noted, (c) Underground portions of
foundations, footings, cir other underground structuie^ We do not look for
underground sewers or flip manhole covers. (d)The shown north arrow isbased on an assumed bearing from aweU de&ed hae. (e) TMsMrvey isnot
transferable and isonly good for 6 years and only good tothe person/co. that pays for ftattin»ofiurvey.(QEasenKnts not shown on
shown above.

Legal Description:
Part ofthe Northeast quarter ofthe Northeast quarter ofSection 34, Township 18 South, Range 2West, steiatedm Jefferson Cbunty, Alabama more
particularly describedas follows:

Begin atthe Southeast comer ofsaid quarter - quarter section and run then Westerly aka^ the Soum line thereoffor adistance of2W
beginningofthetractheredescribed.

From the point ofbeginning thus obtained, continue Westerly along the Souralmcofssid charter-c^artasecdca for adistarice of1^
turn an angle of92° 03'M" tothe right and run Normwardty fa ""*" _^r
of 1,186.48 feet aolsubtending acerraml angle of04844M0" totte drive'
described course when extended Northwardly through thepoint ofintersecticoofsaklcurve, nmthence Eastwardlya^ * -- --
Southerly line ofthe right ofway ofVS.Highway 280 for adistance of98.08 feet; thence turn an angteofSVOy 30* tothe rigta a
tangent ofsaid curve and run Southwardly for adistance 255.33 feet, more or less, to the pointofbeginning. -,%' ™ '-''•

"Closing Survey"

©

According to my survey ofi FEBRUARY 16, 8012.
OrderNo.: 41342
Purchaser
Address: Cahaba River Road
Flood Zone: "X" Map# 01073C 0586O

Survey invalidifnot sealedm red.

[JXCUA-^^ ft, 1*3*™./
Laurence D.Weygand, Reg.PE-LS#10373
Ray Weygand Reg. LS. #24973
169 Oxmoor Road, PH: 942-0086
Homewood,AL 352090 Copyright

- C : PI'Oi

>Mr

•.'o'tHS

la:

AL /C»f

ACREAGE

EDGE OF ASPHUT, -

CAHAB4i5KER R°AD

FENCE / ACREAGE



AERIAL 1

,(3ct Shannon Waltchack TZOIBth Street South,5u to "101/Birmingham, AL 35233 0:205.377.9 797 T:205.B77.979 3 w: shanwatt.com



AERIAL 2

jj.sslSx^y

r-
•v±/

i Shannon Waltchack "EOlBthStroot South,5u to 101/Birmingham, AL 35233 o:205.B77.S797 r:205.B77.S733 w: shanwatt.com



€. \.

PROPOSED BUILDING DESIGN

CAHABA RIVER ROAD
CONCEPTUAL SKETCH | MAY 14, 2012

SSORISTOPHER
SJarchitects

)• Shannon Waltchack "QOlBth Stroot 5 out h.Su to 101/Birmingham, AL 35233 o:205.B77.S797 T: 2 05.9 77.373 3 w: shanwatt.com



/\ Alagasco
^•F^T AN EN ERG EN COMPANY

March 13,2012

Re: 4918 Cahaba River Road

Dear Ms. Ali Wilburn

Shannon Waltchack

Thank you for your request regardinggas availability to serve your proposed project located at
4918 Cahaba River Rd, Birmingham, Alabama 35243.

Alagasco has existing naturalgas facilities in the area mentioned above and service canbe extended
to serve your project. Any extension ofgasservicewould be governed by ourRules andRegulations
as approvedby the Alabama Public Service Commission. In some cases, these rulesdictate that the
customer is responsible for some of the costs incurred in extending our facilities to serve the
customer.

We would appreciate the opportunityto supplyyourgasrequirements. For future service availability
inquiries please call 1(800) 292-4010 so that Market Solutions may discuss your project plans,
answerany questions that you may have and make a determination as to whether any costs apply.

Please let us know ifwe may be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

ALABAMA GAS CORPORATION

Mandy Schwarting
Manager
New Growth Planning



March 22,2012

The Birmingham

Water works Board #618

ShannonWaltchack, LLC
ATTENTION: Ali Wilbura

Suite 101

120 18th Street, South
Birmingham, AL, 35233

DearMr.Wilburn:

You may present this letter to interested parties as evidence that The Water Works and Sewer Board ofthe City
ofBirminghamhas an existing 8" water main along CahabaRiver Road which is available for service to properties with
direct frontage on said roadway situated in the NE Ya of the NE Va of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West,
located in unincorporated Jefferson County, Alabama.

Water mains are owned, operated and maintained by the Water Board as a part of our normal distribution
system. Minimum one-inch (1") service connections to the water mains may be authorized in accordance with our Rules
and Regulations, upon proper application to our System Development Department

In the event existing water mains will not accommodate the fire and domestic flow requirements as
stipulated by the governing fire department, the property owner will be required to upgrade the Water Board's
existing water lines at the property owner's expense in order for the Board to approve extension of service to
proposed developments.

Our distribution system is designed and constructed to meet the requirements of the Alabama Department of
Environmental Management, Water Division- Water SupplyProgram. Properties will be supplied from water mains
with a pressure gradient of 817' above mean sea level.

Ifyou have questions or need further information, please contact Mr. Derrick Maye, Senior Project Coordinator
at 244-4259; or you may reach him via email at derrickjnaye@bwwb.org.

Very truly yours,

Johnson

Superintendent - System Development
DM/ap

DP: 479-2

G:\Engincering & Maintenance Division\System Development\AP\2012 DOCUMENTSVWA LKTTERSNMAYBShannon Waltchack WA ltr re
4918 Cahaba River Road 3 22 I2.doc

3600FirstAvenue North, P.O. Box 830110 • Birmingham, AL35283-0110 • Phone(205)244-4000 Website: www.bwwb.org



GOODWYN MILLS

(.Coleman Williams, P.E.
Project Manager

CAWO OD
z

o

»-

March 15,2012 £
o
o.

z
<
0!

»-

Len Shannon

Shannon Waltchack J
12018* Street South, Suite 101 >
Birmingham, Alabama 35233 >

et

3
M

RE: 4918Cahaba RiverRoad | Sewer Availability via: e-mail&USPS
z

z

Dear Mr. Shannon: <

As you are aware there Is no publicsanitary sewer available adjacentto the property at 4918 Cahaba River Road.
However, the site has been evaluated for its suitability for onsite treatment. During thisevaluation it was found £
that a raised mound septic system would be an acceptable form of onsite sanitary sewer treatment for this JJ
particular site. Please letme know ifyouhave any questions orcomments. £

z

Sincerely: -*
GOODWYN,MILLS AND CAWOOD, INC.

z

a

GOODWYN, MILLS AND CAWOOD, INC.

2701 lit Avenue South, Suite 100

Birmingham, AL 35233

Tel 205.879.4462 Fax 205.879.4493

GMCNETWORK.COM



Ordinance Number 2426 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2426 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE 
OF REAL ESTATE SITUATED AT 1112 MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS THE OLD LIBRARY 
PROPERTY AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN 
EXHIBIT A AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A REAL 
ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT. 

 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2426 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 14th day of January, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, declares municipalities 

corporate and gives them the power to contract and be contracted with; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the property, 

real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council may, by ordinance to be entered on its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor to make title 

thereto, and a conveyance made by the mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests 

the grantee with the title of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-28, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Manager shall be the head of the administrative branch of the government of the City of 

Vestavia Hills and shall be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration 

of all municipal affairs; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-48, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all contracts 

for the City of Vestavia Hills shall be made and approved by ordinance and signed in the 

name of the City of Vestavia Hills by the Mayor and countersigned by the City Manager; 

and 



Ordinance Number 2426 
Page 2 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Open Meetings Act set forth at Title 36-25A-1, et seq., 

Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the deliberative process of conducting City 

business shall be open to the public at regularly scheduled or specially called meetings 

after providing the required notice; and 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Open Meetings Law also provides at Title 36-25A-

7(a)(6), Code of Alabama, 1975, specifically as follows: 

“§36-25A-7.  Executive sessions. 
 (a) Executive sessions are not required by this chapter, but may 
be held by a governmental body only for the following purposes: 
 
  (6) To discuss the consideration the governmental body 
is willing to offer or accept when considering the purchase, sale, 
exchange, lease, or market value of real property.  Provided, however, that 
the material terms of any contract to purchase, exchange, or lease real 
property shall be disclosed in the public portion of a meeting prior to the 
execution of the contract.”; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is the owner of a parcel of land 

situated at 1112 Montgomery Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, 

Alabama constituting of approximately 1.66± acres, sometimes referred to as the “old 

Library property,” which said property is more particularly described in Exhibit A and 

shall hereinafter be referred to as “the Property;” and 

 WHEREAS, the Property has an appraised value of $1,500,000.00 as of June 23, 

2009; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of an offer of HES 

Investments, LLC to purchase the property represented by a written real estate Purchase 

and Sale Agreement for a total sales price in the amount of $750,000.00; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the real estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (hereinafter 

referred to as “Agreement”) is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit B and incorporated into 

this Ordinance Number 2426 by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City 

Council”) approved and adopted Resolution Number 4371 on November 15, 2012 all in 

accordance with Article IV, §94.01 of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901 (hereinafter 



Ordinance Number 2426 
Page 3 

 
referred to as “Amendment Number 772”), which provides, among other things, as 

follows: 

 “2. A public hearing will be held by the Vestavia Hills City 
Council on Monday, January 14, 2013, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal 
Center located at 513 Montgomery Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m. as required by Article IV, §94.01 of the 
Constitution of Alabama 1901. 
 
 6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to take any and all steps 
necessary to publish notice of the public hearing on January 14, 2013, at 
5:00 p.m. in The Birmingham News at least seven (7) days prior to the 
public meeting as aforesaid.  The notice shall include all matters as 
required in Article IV, §94.01 of the Constitution of Alabama 1901. 

 
 WHEREAS, the sale and closing of the Property will be 
considered at a public hearing to be held on Monday, January 14, 2013, at 
the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center located at 513 Montgomery Highway 
in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m.;” and 
 

 WHEREAS, the notice required by Amendment Number 772 was published in 

the December 19, 2012 edition of The Birmingham News; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that if an 

ordinance is published by posting, then in such event said ordinance shall take effect five 

days thereafter; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has found and determined by the approval and adoption of 

this Ordinance Number 2426 that the execution and delivery of the Agreement will 

promote economic development and the public interests and general welfare of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that the property more particularly described in Exhibit A is not needed for 

municipal or public purposes. 

 2. The City Council, by the approval and adoption of Ordinance Number 

2426, finds and determines that if a recognized company (“Company”), approved by the 

City in its sole discretion, shall have first agreed in writing with the City to open and 

operate a commercial retail sales business on the Property that will generate annual 



Ordinance Number 2426 
Page 4 

 
municipal sales tax revenues in an amount sufficient to satisfy the City, in its sole 

discretion, that selling the Property for $750,000.00: 

  (a) meets the requirements of Amendment Number 772; and 

  (b) promotes economic development; and 

  (c) promotes the public interest and general welfare; 

then in such events, the City will close the sale all in accordance with the terms, 

provisions and conditions of the Purchase and Sale Agreement designated as Exhibit B 

and attached hereto. 

 3. A copy of the real estate Purchase and Sale Agreement (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Agreement”) is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit B and incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 2426 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

 4. The Mayor and the City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver the real estate Purchase and Sale Agreement for and on behalf of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 5. Anything contained in this Ordinance Number 2426 to the contrary 

notwithstanding, the sale of the Property pursuant to the real estate Purchase and Sale 

Agreement shall not be closed unless and until the terms, provisions and conditions of the 

Agreement have been satisfied, performed, completed and done, including specifically, 

but not limited to: 

  (a) The closing of the sale must be approved and validated by a 

judgment rendered by a Jefferson County Circuit Court Judge after a hearing on the 

merits; and 

  (b) A recognized company (“Company”) shall have first agreed in 

writing with the City to open and operate a commercial retail sales business on the 

Property that will generate annual municipal sales tax revenue in an amount sufficient to 

satisfy the City, in its sole discretion, that selling the subject property for $750,000.00 

meets the requirements of Article IV §94.01, Constitution of Alabama of 1901.  If the 

City approves the Company, then in such event the approval shall be done by the 

enactment of a resolution at a public meeting.  If the City disapproves the Company, then 

in such event the City shall not close the sale of the Property and the Contract shall 

automatically terminate, be null and void and have no legal force and effect. 



Ordinance Number 2426 
Page 5 

 
 6. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

 7. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 14th day of January, 

2013. 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
      By_________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
       
ATTESTED BY: 
 
_________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2426 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 14th day of January, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the 15th day of 
January, 2013. 
 
    
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



1 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into on or 

as of this   day of     , 2012 by and between The City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama (the “Seller”), and HES Investments, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company or its 

assigns (the “Purchaser”). 

Recitals 

A. Seller is the owner of that certain parcel of improved real property, being known 

as the old Vestavia Hills library property comprised of 1.66 acres and an approximate 22,000 square 

foot, three story building, located at 1112 Montgomery Highway in Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as depicted 

on the  attached  Exhibit A and made a part hereof (the “Property”). 

B. Purchaser desires to purchase the Property, and Seller desires to sell the Property, 

pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals and other good and valuable 

consideration, including the mutual covenants and promises herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as follows: 

1. Purchase Price;  Closing Date.  The purchase price for the Property shall be 

$750,000.00 (the “Purchase Price”), to be paid as hereinafter provided.  The closing of the sale and 

purchase of the Property (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date, as defined in paragraph 5. 

2. Earnest Money; Inspection Period.  No later than three (3) business days after the 

Effective Date (defined in Section 24 hereof), Purchaser shall pay to Seller immediately available funds 

in the amount of $10,000.00 (the “Earnest Money”), to be held and disbursed by the  Seller in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Commencing on the Effective Date, Purchaser shall have 

120 days (the “Inspection Period”) to perform such inspections as Purchaser deems necessary to 

evaluate the Property, at Purchaser’s sole expense.  Purchaser shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless 

from any and all claims, damages and losses, including attorney fees, arising from such inspections.  If 

Purchaser deems any inspection unsatisfactory, for any reason or no reason, Purchaser shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the Inspection Period, by written notice to Seller 

received prior to the end of the Inspection Period, and receive a full refund of the Earnest Money.  If 

Purchaser does not terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the Inspection Period, all inspections 

shall be deemed satisfactory, and the parties shall proceed to Closing. 

3. Application of Earnest Money. Unless this Agreement is terminated prior to the 

end of the Inspection Period, the Earnest Money shall become non-refundable and shall be applied to the 

Purchase Price to be paid by Purchaser at Closing.   

4. Possession.   Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to Purchaser on the 

Closing Date. 



2 

5. Place and Date of Closing.  The Closing shall  be on or before the date which is   

30 days following the end of the Inspection Period  provided the sale has been validated by the Circuit 

Court of Jefferson County, Alabama.   The actual date of Closing is referred to herein as the “Closing 

Date.”  Time shall be of the essence with respect to the Closing Date. 

6. Conveyance. Seller shall convey to Purchaser good and marketable fee simple 

title to the Property by  general warranty deed. 

7. Costs and Fees.   Purchaser shall pay all other costs and fees related to closing 

including any updated survey, appraisal, environmental audits, title, mortgage tax, recording fees, etc. 

Seller and Purchaser shall pay the fees of their own attorneys for services related to the preparation and 

negotiation of this Agreement and the sale and purchase of the Property.  All taxes will be prorated as of 

the day of closing. 

Seller agrees to provide its most recent survey of the Property to Seller, together with 

other readily accessible reports, easements and other agreements relating to the Property now in Seller’s 

possession, all within five (5) business days from the Effective Date. 

8. Intentionally Deleted 

9. Representations and Warranties of Seller.  To induce Purchaser to enter into this 

Agreement, Seller makes the following representations and warranties, all of which are true as of the 

date hereof (unless otherwise specified) and shall also be true as of the Closing Date: 

(a) Seller has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform all 

of its obligations hereunder.   

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance by Seller of its 

obligations hereunder have been duly authorized by all requisite action, except for validation of the sale 

by a court order rendered by a Judge in the Tenth Judicial Circuit of Alabama after conducting a hearing 

for that purpose and the approval by the City of the Company (as defined in Section 25, Closing 

Condition Four) submitted by Purchaser. 
 
(c)  That unless excepted herein, Seller has not received notification from any lawful 

authority regarding any assessments, pending public improvements, repairs, replacement, or alterations 

to the Property that have not been satisfactorily made.  Seller warrants that there is no unpaid 

indebtedness on the Property except as described in this Agreement  Seller warrants  it is the fee owner 

of the Property or is authorized to execute this document for the fee owner.  
 

(d) Seller has no actual knowledge that the Property has in the past been used or is 

presently used for the handling , storage, manufacturing, refining, transportation or disposal of “toxic 

material”, “hazardous substances” or “hazardous waste”.  The terms “hazardous wastes”, “hazardous 

substances”, and “toxic material” include, without limitation, any flammable explosives, radioactive 

materials, hazard materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or toxic substances or related materials defined 

in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended 

(42 USC §960, et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportaion Act, as amended (42 USC §1801 et seq), 

the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (42 USC §9601 et seq.), the regulations 



3 

adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to the foregoing and any other federal, state or local 

environmental law, ordinance, rule or regulation.  Furthermore, Seller has not receieved a summons, 

citation, directive, letter or other communication, written or oral, from any governmental authority as to 

any of the above environmental concerns. 

 

(e) Seller shall neither market the Property for sale nor enter into a “back-up” 

contract with any other party for said Property throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 

At Closing, Seller shall be deemed to have represented and warranted to Purchaser that Seller’s 

representations and warranties as stated herein are true and correct as of the Closing.  Purchaser shall 

have the right, at its expense, to have a Phase 1 ESA performed on the Property. 
 

THESE WARRANTIES SHALL SURVIVE THE DELIVERY OF THE DEED. 

 

10. Documents for Closing. 

(a) Seller, at Seller’s sole cost and expense, shall deliver or cause to be delivered to 

Purchaser the following documents (the “Closing Documents): 

(i) the Deed;  

(ii) a certificate of non-foreign status to insure Seller’s compliance with 

Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act (“FIRPTA”) (Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended) in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C;  

(iii) such additional documents and instruments as the title company may 

reasonably require to transfer Seller’s interest in the Property pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 

each of which shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Seller. 

(b) At the Closing, Purchaser shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to Seller in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Purchase Price less the Earnest Money and prorations. 

11. Default; Remedies. If Purchaser fails to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement within the time specified, Seller shall have the right to retain the Earnest Money as 

liquidated damages as its sole and exclusive remedy.  If Seller fails to perform any of the covenants of 

this Agreement, then the Earnest Money paid by Purchaser shall be returned to Purchaser and thereupon 

Seller shall be released from any and all liability under the terms of this Agreement, or, alternatively, 

Purchaser may seek the remedy of specific performance so long as such action is filed within thirty (30) 

days of the alleged breach and or pursue any other remedies afforded to it under the law.    If either party 

fails to comply with all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party in 

any lawsuit will be entitled to all expenses, including a reasonable attorney’s fee, incurred as a result of 

such failure. 

12. Condemnation and Destruction. If, on the Closing Date, all or any reasonably 

substantial portion of the Property is the subject of a pending or contemplated taking by eminent domain 

which has not been consummated or if the Property has been materially damaged or destroyed, Seller 

shall notify Purchaser of such fact and Purchaser shall have the option to terminate this Agreement and, 



4 

in the event Purchaser shall elect to terminate this Agreement, Seller shall refund to Purchaser the 

Earnest Money.  If this Agreement is terminated and the Earnest Money is returned, as aforesaid, neither 

party shall have any further rights or obligations hereunder.  If, after receipt of Seller’s notice, as 

aforesaid, Purchaser does not exercise its option to terminate this Agreement, the parties hereto shall 

remain bound hereunder and Seller shall assign and turn over, and Purchaser shall be entitled to receive 

and keep, all awards for the taking by eminent domain described in said notice or all insurance proceeds 

payable as a result of such destruction or damage.  

13. Final Agreement. This Agreement represents the final agreement of the parties 

and no agreements or representations, unless incorporated in this Agreement, shall be binding on any of 

the parties, and no portion hereof shall be amended or modified unless such change shall be in writing 

and signed by both parties thereto. 

14. Notice. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and sent by certified 

mail, return receipt requested. Notice shall be deemed to be given when deposited in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid.  Personal delivery and delivery by recognized overnight delivery service may be 

substituted for certified mail. Notice shall be sent to the following individuals: 

 

If to Purchaser: Jordy Henson 

HES Investments, LLC 

2644 Old Rocky Ridge Road 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

 

 

If to Seller:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

513 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 

With a copy to: Patrick H. Boone 

   705 New South Federal Savings Building 

   215 Richard Arrington, Jr. Boulevard North 

   Birmingham, Alabama 35203-3720 

 

15. Number and Gender. Whenever the singular number is used herein and when 

required by the context, the same shall include the plural, and the masculine gender shall include the 

feminine and neuter genders, and the word “person” shall include a corporation, firm, partnership, joint 

venture, trust or estate. 

16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and 

enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Alabama. 

17. Assignment. Purchaser may not transfer, assign or encumber its rights and or 

obligations under this agreement without the prior written consent of Seller, which approval may be 



5 

withheld in Seller’s sole and absolute discretion; provided, however, that Purchaser shall have the right 

to transfer and assign this Agreement to any entity which is controlled by Purchaser. 

18. Survival. The representations, warranties and indemnities contained herein shall 

be deemed to have been made again by the parties as of the Closing Date, and shall survive the 

expiration or termination of this Agreement, the discharge of all other obligations owed by the parties to 

each other, and any transfer of title to the Property, and shall not be affected by any investigation by or 

on behalf of Purchaser, or by any information which Purchaser may have or obtain with respect thereto. 

19. Severability.  In the event that any condition or covenant herein contained is held 

to be invalid or void by any court of competent jurisdiction, the same shall be deemed severable from 

the remainder of this Agreement and shall in no way affect any other covenant or conditions herein 

contained.  If such condition, covenant or other provision shall be deemed invalid due to its scope or 

breadth, such provision shall be deemed valid to the extent of the scope or breadth permitted by law. 

20. Waiver. No breach of any provision hereof can be waived unless in writing. 

Waiver of any one breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach of the same or any 

other provision hereof.   

21. Captions and Interpretations. Paragraph titles or captions contained herein are 

inserted as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit, extend of describe the 

scope of this Agreement or any provision hereof. No provision in this Agreement is to be interpreted for 

or against either party because that party or such party’s legal representative drafted such provision. 

22. Broker.  Seller and Purchaser shall indemnify each other against any and all 

claims for broker’s fees, costs or commissions which might arise in connection with the purchase and 

sale of the Property as a result of either’s action.  The provisions of this Paragraph shall survive closing.  

Each party hereby represents to the other that it has not utilized the services of any real estate agent or 

broker in connection with this Agreement. 

 

23. Patriot Act Representations.  Seller and Purchaser each represent and warrant to 

the other that they are not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any person, group, entity, or 

nation named by the United States Treasury Department as a Specifically Designated National and 

Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of any person, group, entity, or nation designated in Presidential 

Executive Order 13224 as a person who commits, threatens to commit, or supports terrorism; and that 

they are not engaged in this transaction directly or indirectly on behalf of, or facilitating this transaction 

directly or indirectly in behalf of, any such person, group, entity, or nation. 

 

24.  Effective Date:  The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date which is the sixth 

(6
th

) day following the posting of the ordinance approved and enacted by the City Council authorizing 

and directing the Mayor to sign the Agreement for and on behalf of the Seller. 

 25. CONTINGENCIES AND CONDITIONS FOR CLOSING:  Anything contained in 

this   Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, this Agreement  is subject to and contingent upon the 

completion and satisfaction of the following on or before the Seller is required to close this sale, 

hereinafter referred to collectively as “Closing Conditions”: 

 



6 

  CLOSING CONDITION ONE:  Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 

 “The governing body of any city or town in this state may, by 

ordinance to be entered on its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor 

to make title thereto, and a conveyance made by the mayor in accordance 

with such ordinance invests the grantee with the title of the municipality.” 

 

  In order for the Seller to be required to close this sale pursuant to this Agreement, the 

City Council shall first make a determination, on or before the Effective Date set forth in Paragraph 24 

hereof, that the Property is no longer needed for public or municipal purposes.  If the City Council fails 

or refuses to make a determination that the Property is no longer needed for public or municipal 

purposes as aforesaid, then in such event the Seller shall not be required to close this sale and this 

Agreement shall be automatically terminated, be null and void and of no legal force and effect. 

 

 

  CLOSING CONDITION TWO:  Amendment No. 772 to the Constitution of Alabama (1901) 

(Section 94.01(a)(3) of the Recompiled Constitution of Alabama (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 

No. 772”), authorizes the City to lend its credit to or grant public funds and things of value in aid of or to 

any corporation or other business entity for the purpose of promoting the economic development of the 

City.  Article IV, §94.01 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901 Amendment No. 772” reads in 

pertinent part as follows: 

 

 “(a) The governing body of any county, and the governing body 

of any municipality located therein, for which a local constitutional 

amendment has not been adopted authorizing any of the following, shall 

have full and continuing power to do any of the following: 

 

  (3) Lend its credit to or grant public funds and things of 

value in aid of or to any individual, firm, corporation, or other business 

entity, public or private, for the purpose of promoting the economic and 

industrial development of the county or the municipality. 

 

 (b) In carrying out the purpose of this amendment, neither the 

county nor any municipality located therein shall be subject to Section 93 

or 94 of this Constitution. 

 

 (c) Neither the county nor any municipality located therein 

shall lend its credit to or grant any public funds or thing of value to or in 

aid of any private entity under the authority of this amendment unless 

prior thereto both of the following are satisfied: 

 

  (1) The action proposed to be taken by the county or 

municipality is approved at a public meeting of the governing body of the 

county or municipality, as the case may be, by a resolution containing a 

determination by the governing body that the expenditure of public funds 



7 

for the purpose specified will serve a valid and sufficient public purpose, 

notwithstanding any incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or 

entities. 

 

  (2) At least seven days prior to the public meeting, a 

notice is published in the newspaper having the largest circulation in the 

county or municipality, as the case may be, describing in reasonable detail 

the action proposed to be taken, a description of the public benefits sought 

to be achieved by the action, and identifying each individual, firm, 

corporation, or other business entity to whom or for whose benefit the 

county or the municipality proposes to lend its credit or grant public funds 

or thing of value. 

 

 For purposes of the foregoing, any sale, lease, or other disposition 

of property for a price equal to the fair market value thereof shall not 

constitute the lending of credit or a grant of public funds or thing of value 

in aid of a private entity.” 

 

  In order for the Seller to be required to close this sale pursuant to this Agreement, the 

City Council shall first publish the notice of a public meeting in strict compliance with the mandated 

requirements of Amendment No. 772.  If the City Council fails or refuses to publish said notice as 

aforesaid, then in such event the Seller shall not be required to close this sale and this Agreement shall 

be automatically terminated, be null and void and have no legal force and effect. 

 

 

 

CLOSING CONDITION THREE:  In order for the Seller to be required to close this sale 

pursuant to this Agreement, the City Council shall first: 

 

  (a) Hold and conduct the public meeting as required by Amendment No. 772; and 

 

  (b) Find and determine that the sale of the property pursuant to the Agreement will: 

 

   (1) Promote the economic development of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama; and 

 

   (2) Serve as a valid and sufficient public purpose notwithstanding any 

incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or entities; and 

 

   (3) Benefit the public and promote the public welfare of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama; and 

 

   (4) Promote commercial development and the stimulation of the local 

economy; and 

 

   (5) Increase employment opportunities and create jobs in the City; and 



8 

 

   (6) Increase the City’s tax base, which will result in additional tax revenues 

for the City; and 

 

   (7) Promote the location, relocation, expansion and retention of commercial 

enterprises in the City. 

 

   (8) Find and determine that a  recognized company (“Company”) will locate 

on the Property that will open and operate a commercial retail sales business that will generate annual 

municipal sales tax revenue in an amount sufficient to justify the sale of the Property for less than the 

year 2009 appraised value. 

 

  (c) Approve and adopt an ordinance authorizing and directing the Mayor to sign this 

Agreement. 

 

  If the City Council fails or refuses to hold and conduct the public hearing as mandated by 

Amendment No. 772 or fails and refuses to make any of the findings or determinations as set forth in 

paragraphs (1) through (8) above, and/or fails or refuses to approve and adopt the ordinance referred to 

above, then in such event the Seller shall not be required to close this sale and the Agreement shall be 

automatically terminated, be null and void and have no legal force and effect. 

 

 

CLOSING CONDITION FOUR:  The Purchaser shall, on or before ninety (90) days from the 

Effective Date, produce to Seller a  tenant or company (the “Company” or the “tenant”) that will, prior 

to the end of said ninety (90) day period provide written confirmation to the Seller stating that it, the 

Company, pending and in accordance with a fully executed commercial lease with Purchaser, and 

provided this Agreement closes and the Company actually opens for business: 

 

a) Will locate within the corporate boundaries of the  City of Vestavia Hills and 

open and operate a commercial retail sales business on the Property; and 

 

  (b)  Will purchase from Seller a business license the cost of which shall be based 

upon a fee and a percentage of gross retail sales; and 

 

  (c)  Will be engaged in the commercial business of retail sales; and 

 

  (d) Expects to generate  annual retail sales in an amount necessary to collect and pay 

over to the City annually municipal sales tax revenue, (which is presently calculated at three percent 

(3%) of gross retail sales) sufficient to justify, in the sole opinion of Seller, selling the Property at less 

than the year 2009 appraised value. 

 

  In order for the Seller to be required to close this sale pursuant to this Agreement, the 

City Council shall first accept, agree and approve the Company to locate and operate in the City of 

Vestavia Hills as completion and satisfaction of this Closing Condition Four.  The acceptance by the 

Seller shall be in writing and approved by the enactment of a resolution at a public hearing, all within 



9 

ten (10) business days from Purchaser’s submission of a Company to Seller for its approval or 

disapproval.   

 

  Purchaser and Seller agree that the Seller shall have the sole, unfettered and absolute 

discretion to approve or disapprove the Company offered by Purchaser in an effort to complete and 

satisfy this Closing Condition Four.  If the City Council fails or refuses to accept the Company as 

completion and satisfaction of this Closing Condition Four, then in such event the Seller shall have no 

legal obligation to close this sale and this Agreement shall be automatically terminated, be null and void 

and of no legal force and effect and the Earnest Money shall be immediately returned to Purchaser. 

 

  Anything to the contrary in this Closing Condition Four notwithstanding, Purchaser shall 

have ninety (90) days from the Effective Date to continue to submit prospective tenants to Seller for 

Seller’s approval or disapproval.  If after said ninety (90) day period Seller has not approved of a 

Company, then and only then shall the Seller have the right but not the obligation to terminate the 

Agreement by immediately refunding the Earnest Money to Purchaser.   

 

  CLOSING CONDITION FIVE:  Seller shall have no legal obligation to close this sale unless 

and until the Property is rezoned by the City of Vestavia Hills so as to permit the contemplated use by 

the Purchaser or Company referred to in Closing Condition Four.  If the Property is not rezoned as 

aforesaid, then in such event the Seller shall have no legal obligation to close the sale of the Property 

and this Agreement shall be automatically terminated, be null and void and of no force and effect and 

the Earnest Money shall be immediately returned to Purchaser. 

 

  CLOSING CONDITION SIX:  In order for the Seller to be required to close this sale 

pursuant to this Agreement, the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama shall have first entered a 

judgment validating and confirming this Agreement and the closing thereof, which judgment shall have 

become forever conclusive in accordance with and as provided in Section 6-6-755 of the Code of 

Alabama, 1975.  If the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama fails or refuses to render a judgment 

validating and confirming this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, then in such 

event the Seller shall not be required to close this sale and the Agreement shall be automatically 

terminated, be null and void and of no force and effect and the Earnest Money shall immediately be 

returned to Purchaser. 

 

  CLOSING CONDITION SEVEN:  If the sale of the Property is not closed on or before the 

Closing Date, then in such event this Agreement shall automatically be terminated, cancelled, null and 

void and of no legal force and effect. 

 

  The Seller shall have no legal obligation to close this sale unless and until all seven 

Closing Conditions have been completed and satisfied.  Stated another way, if any one of the Closing 

Conditions is not completed and satisfied, then in such event this  Agreement shall be automatically 

terminated and of no legal force and effect and the Earnest Money shall be immediately refunded to 

Purchaser. 

 

 26. CONDITION OF PROPERTY:  The Property is sold in “as is condition with any and 

all faults.”  Purchaser expressly acknowledges and agrees that Seller makes no representations or 



10 

warranties regarding the condition of the Property, except to the extent expressly and specifically set 

forth herein. 

 

 27. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS:  Descriptive headings are for convenience only and 

shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision.  Any ambiguities of this 

Agreement shall be construed fairly and equitably regardless of the participation of either party in 

drafting this Agreement.  The reference in terms to gender and number shall be modified as may be 

appropriate. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have caused this Agreement to be executed as 

of the date first above written. 

 

       SELLER: 

 

WITNESS      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

___________________________________  By_________________________________ 

        Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

        Its Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

       PURCHASER: 

 

WITNESS      HES INVESTMENTS, LLC 

         

 

___________________________________  By_________________________________ 

        W. Jordy Henson 

        Its Managing Member 



11 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 

that Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is signed to 

the foregoing Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before 

me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the document, he, as such officer and with full 

authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______day of _______________, 2012. 

 

My Commission Expires:   __________________________________________ 

____________________    Notary Public 

SEAL 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 

that W. Jordy Henson, whose name as Managing Member of HES Investments, LLC, is signed to the 

foregoing Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement and who is known to me, acknowledged before me 

on this day that, being informed of the contents of the document, he, as such officer and with full 

authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said HES Investments, LLC. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _______day of _______________, 2012. 

 

My Commission Expires:   __________________________________________ 

____________________    Notary Public 

SEAL 

 



12 

EXHIBIT A 

TO 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 

A parcel of land situated in the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest 

Quarter of Section 30, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 

 

From the Southwest corner of said quarter-quarter section run thence 

in an Easterly direction along the South line of same for a distance of 

589.77 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; 

thence turn an angle to the left of 103 degrees 33 minutes 57 seconds 

and run in a Northwesterly direction for a distance of 206.63 feet; 

thence turn an angle to the right of 101 degrees 35 minutes 18 

seconds and run in an Easterly direction for a distance of 359.60 feet 

to a point on the Westerly right-of-way of U.S. Highway 31, said 

point being in a curve to the right having a radius of 3173.97 feet and 

a central angle of 3 degrees 54 minutes 57 seconds and being concave 

to the West with a chord which forms an interior angle of 98 degrees 

29 minutes 45 seconds with the previous call; thence run along the 

arc of said curve in said right-of-way line in a southerly direction for 

a distance of 216.93 feet to the South line of said quarter-quarter 

section, the chord of said curve forming an interior angle of 79 

degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds with said South line of said quarter-

quarter section; thence run in a Westerly direction along said South 

line for a distance of 350.34 feet to the point of beginning. 
 

 

 



13 

EXHIBIT B 

TO 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

TO 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF 

NONFOREIGN STATUS 

This Certification of Nonforeign Status is made by       

   (“Seller”) to the _______________________________________ (“Purchaser”), pursuant to 

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). 

Section 1445 of the Code provides that a transferee of a United States real property interest must 

withhold tax if the transferor is a foreign person.  To inform the Purchaser that withholding of tax is not required 

upon the disposition of a United States real property interest by Seller, the undersigned hereby certifies the 

following on behalf of Seller: 

1.  Seller is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust, or foreign estate (as those 

terms are defined in the Internal Revenue Code and Internal Tax Regulations).  Seller is a domestic corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Alabama. Seller is not a partner in any foreign partnership and does not 

have any interest in any foreign trust or foreign estate (as those terms are defined in the Code and Income Tax 

Regulations). 

2. Seller’s employer identification  number is 63-0371391. 

3.   Seller’s office address is       . 

Seller understands that this Certification of Nonforeign Status may be disclosed to the Internal 

Revenue Service by Purchaser and that any false statement contained herein could be punished by fine, 

imprisonment, or both. 



15 

Under the penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this Certification of Nonforeign 

Status and to the best of my knowledge and belief it is true, correct and complete, and I further declare that I have 

authority to sign this document on behalf of Seller. 

[Signature Page Follows] 



16 

 

This Certification is signed by the undersigned on the ____ day of ______________, 20____. 

 

By:         

Name:      

Title:           

 

 


	2012_1226CC_A
	2012_1210CC_M
	Ordinance 2427
	Resolution 4382
	Resolution 4383
	Resolution 4384
	Resolution 4385
	Resolution 4381
	Ordinance 2426



